

**RESOLUTION OF THE CITY UNIVERSITY CONSTRUCTION FUND APPROVING  
THE ANNUAL REPORT ON PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS AND THE AMENDED AND  
RESTATED GUIDELINES FOR PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS**

**WHEREAS**, the City University Construction Fund (the "CUCF") is a public benefit corporation that is authorized to provide facilities that support the educational purposes of The City University of New York (the "University"); and

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to Section 2879 of the New York Public Authorities Law, every public benefit corporation is required to adopt, by resolution, comprehensive guidelines which detail the corporation's operative policy and instructions regarding the use, awarding, monitoring and reporting of procurement contracts; and

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law, these guidelines must be annually reviewed and approved by every such corporation.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT:**

**RESOLVED**, that CUCF's Board of Trustees hereby approves and adopts the Annual Report on Procurement Contracts of CUCF for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution; and

**BE IT FURTHER**

**RESOLVED**, that CUCF's Board of Trustees hereby approves and adopts CUCF's Amended and Restated Guidelines for Procurement Contracts, as last amended and restated by CUCF on June 1, 2021 and attached as Exhibit B to this Resolution.

**EXPLANATION:** The 2020 Annual Report on Procurement Contracts reflects the procurement activity of CUCF during the prior fiscal year, July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. The Guidelines, which have been in effect since September 1991 and were amended as of January 29, 1998, October 14, 2008 and June 10, 2014, and last amended on June 23, 2016, set forth the operative policy and instructions of the Fund regarding the use, awarding, monitoring, and reporting of procurement contracts. They were last reviewed, amended and approved by the Trustees on June 25, 2020 (No. 2329).

The undersigned hereby certifies that (i) the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted at the regular meeting of the Trustees of the City University Construction Fund held on August 19, 2021; (ii) at such meeting, a quorum of Trustees was present; (iii) the resolution was adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than four Trustees present at such meeting; and (iv) the resolution has not been amended or rescinded since the date of adoption.

Date: August 19, 2021

  
\_\_\_\_\_  
Mohamed Attalla, Executive Director

## FY 2020 Annual Report on Procurement (7/1/19 - 6/30/20)

Campus	Project Name	Vendor	City	State	Zip	Selection Process	Project Value	New Contract in FY 2020	Payment Amount
Baruch	17 Lexington Fire Alarm Systems	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$831,437.77		\$831,437.77
Baruch	Allen & Mary Aaronson Student Center	TDX Construction Corporation	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$5,332,549.46		\$5,500,114.82
Baruch	Allen & Mary Aaronson Student Center	Twin Peaks, Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	RFP- Task Order	\$91,225.00		\$63,250.00
Baruch	Field Building	Davis Brody Bond LLP	New York	NY	10013	RFP	\$12,369,764.00		\$708,090.99
Baruch	Field Building	Emtec Consultants, Professional Engineers, PLLC	Ronkonkoma	NY	11779	RFP- Task Order	\$232,400.00		\$193,300.00
Baruch	Field Building	EnTech Engineering, PC. (WBE)	New York	NY	10004	RFP- Task Order	\$119,960.00		\$11,170.50
Baruch	Field Building	LiRo Program and Construction Management, P.C.	Syosset	NY	11791	RFP	\$166,326,027.00		\$22,914,380.16
Baruch	Field Building	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$55,839.20		\$55,839.20
Baruch	Fire Alarm System	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$9,427.52		\$9,427.52
Baruch	Various Buildings Fire Alarm System Upgrade	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$181,452.30		\$181,452.30
BMCC	70 Murray St. 2nd & 3rd Floor Expansion	Resnick 255 Greenwich, LLC	New York	NY	10007	Single Source ( a )	\$12,880,351.00		\$3,990,771.15
BMCC	ADA Bathroom 199 Chambers	CORE Environmental Consultants, Inc.	College Point	NY	11356	Requirements Contract	\$17,424,000.00		\$10,040.25
BMCC	ADA Bathroom 199 Chambers	Gilbane Building Company	New York	NY	10005	RFP- Task Order	\$12,619,863.08		\$5,292,330.30
BMCC	ADA Bathroom 199 Chambers	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Task Order	\$558,432.00		\$43,883.16
BMCC	ADA Bathroom 199 Chambers	Urban Engineers of New York, P.C.	New York	NY	10121	RFP- Task Order	\$172,175.00		\$13,020.00
BMCC	CUNY in the Heights	5030 Broadway MMS, LLC	Newark	NJ	07102	Through landlord	\$6,160,393.00		\$1,160,322.28
BMCC	Physical Master Plan Consultants	Mitchell Giurgola Architects, LLP	New York	NY	10036	RFP- Task Order	\$249,684.99		\$16,833.60
BMCC	Window Installation	Olympic Contracting Corp. (MBE)	Brooklyn	NY	11214	CUNY CSB	\$683,000.00		\$252,881.31
BMCC	Window Installation	Quality Control Laboratories, LLC (MBE)	Woodside	NY	11377	CUNY CSB - Sub to Prime	\$9,600.00		\$9,600.00
Bronx CC	Alumni Gym Locker Renovation	H2M Architects & Engineers	Melville	NY	11747	RFP-Task Order	\$66,243.75		\$224.53
Bronx CC	Bliss Hall Bathroom Renovation	H2M Architects & Engineers	Melville	NY	11747	RFP- Task Order	\$80,005.00		\$2,421.43
Bronx CC	Bronx CC Campus Wide Fire Alarm	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$4,762,351.17		\$353,316.84
Bronx CC	Bronx Express	Dattner Architects, D.P.C	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Task Order	\$99,746.00		\$392,843.75
Bronx CC	Dominican War Veterans Memorial	Saratoga Associates	New York	NY	10007	RFP- Task Order	\$47,992.00		\$3,075.00
Bronx CC	Loew Hall Elevator	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Supplemental	\$61,483.00		\$133,366.40
Bronx CC	Meister Stem Lab	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Task Order	\$56,130.00		\$27,092.83
Bronx CC	Nichols Building ADA Ramp	Li Saltzman Architects PC (WBE)	New York	NY	10013	RFP-Task Order	\$70,568.21		\$28,551.29
Bronx CC	Ohio Field Replacement	Saratoga Associates	Saratoga Springs	NY	12866	RFP- Supplemental	\$231,392.45		\$19,614.22
Bronx CC	Roof Restorations for Gould Memorial Library	Beyer Blinder Belle Architects & Planners LLP	New York	NY	10003	RFP- Task Order	\$413,539.00		\$2,100.91
Brooklyn	ADA Upgrade to Lecture Hall	Emtec Consultants, Professional Engineers, PLLC	Ronkonkoma	NY	11779	RFP- Task Order	\$58,100.00		\$8,350.00
Brooklyn	ADA Upgrade to Lecture Hall	Epic Management, Inc.	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Task Order	\$9,174,485.42		\$515,790.66
Brooklyn	ADA Upgrade to Lecture Hall	Yu & Associates (MBE)	Elmwood Park	NJ	07407	RFP- Task Order	\$69,222.00		\$2,356.78
Brooklyn	Campus Wide Security & Fire Systems	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$12,786,000.00		\$274,568.92
Brooklyn	Franchise Brooklyn Tunnel	Emtec Consultants, Professional Engineers, PLLC	Ronkonkoma	NY	11779	Task Order - Mini RFP from prequalified list	\$34,300.00		\$9,604.00
Brooklyn	Ingersoll Hall Laboratory Renovation	LiRo Program and Construction Management, P.C.	Syosset	NY	11791	RFP- Task Order	\$22,729,516.00		\$4,347,318.63
Brooklyn	Ingersoll Hall Laboratory Renovation	Mitchell Giurgola Architects, LLP	New York	NY	10036	RFP- Task Order	\$1,598,794.00		\$32,070.05
Brooklyn	Ingersoll Hall Laboratory Renovation	Yu & Associates (MBE)	Elmwood Park	NJ	07407	RFP- Task Order	\$191,239.00		\$15,551.52
Brooklyn	Multiple Lecture Hall	Ikon 5 Architects, LLC	Princeton	NJ	08540	RFP- Task Order	\$163,816.00		\$106,002.76
Brooklyn	Performing Arts Center	Hill International, Inc.	New York	NY	10119	RFP	\$69,086,736.00		\$448,679.18
Brooklyn	Roosevelt Hall Fire Alarm Upgrade	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$1,698,981.75		\$1,698,981.75
Brooklyn	Roosevelt Hall Renovation	Dattner Architects, D.P.C	New York	NY	10018	RFP-Task Order	\$781,375.40		\$314,155.85
Brooklyn	Steiner Studios	Arri, Inc.	Blauvelt	NY	10913	RFQ & CSB ( b )	\$142,668.00		\$63,697.25
Brooklyn	Steiner Studios	B&H Photo-Video	New York	NY	10001	RFQ & CSB ( b )	\$323,149.56		\$191,204.20
Brooklyn	Steiner Studios	Vintage King Studio, Inc.	Ferndale	MI	48220	RFQ & CSB ( b )	\$19,740.96		\$755.98
Central Office	Equipment	Trimach Holdings, LLC	Glen Allen	VA	23060	Final Payment	\$54,799.50		\$54,799.50
Central Office	Image Silo Content Storage Services	CASO	New York	NY	10001	RFQ	\$18,000.00		\$24,195.00
Central Office	Laser System	Scordato Sales	Rockvillla Centre	NY	11570	Final Payment	\$41,356.00		\$41,356.00
Central Office	Real Estate Intelligence Service	CoStar	New York	NY	10036	RFQ	\$45,600.00		\$27,993.33
City	ASRC Retro Commissioning	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$784,730.00		\$784,730.00
City	City Lab Renovation 2014	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP-Task Order	\$262,179.44		\$11,148.78

City	Various Buildings Fire Alarm System Upgrade	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$5,010.00		\$5,010.00
CSI	Building 2M Renovation Phase 2	STV Construction, Inc.	New York	NY	10003	RFP- Task Order	\$6,191,394.00		\$302,454.41
CSI	Building 2M Renovation Phase 2	Superstructures	New York	NY	10005	RFP- Task Order	\$189,339.00		\$29,500.00
CSI	Equipment	Dell	Round Rock	TX	78664	Partial Payment	\$352,990.59		\$352,048.15
CSI	Various Buildings Fire Alarm System Upgrade	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$304,004.00		\$3,261,778.50
CSI	VS Fire Alarm System Upgrade Ph. 2	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$24,724,109.85	Yes	\$282,150.00
CUNY Law	Law HVAC	Cushman & Wakefield, Inc.	New York	NY	10104	Sole Source - Real Estate	\$1,300,000.00		\$258,779.96
CUNY Law	Trial Courtroom	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	Partial Payment	\$237,335.00		\$9,569.16
CUNY Law	Trial Courtroom	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	Final Payment	\$4,544.68		\$4,544.68
CUNY Law	Trial Courtroom	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	Final Payment	\$1,480.06		\$1,480.06
CUNY Law	Trial Courtroom	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	Final Payment	\$21,921.22		\$21,921.22
CUNY Law	Two Court Square	Board of Managers of Two Court Square Condominium	Long Island City	NY	11101	Single Source ( c )	\$4,557,514.41		\$4,330,299.14
CUNYWIDE	Data Center Relocation	Epic Management, Inc.	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Task Order	\$20,144,810.00		\$1,396,659.45
CUNYWIDE	Data Center Relocation	HAKS (MBE)	Flushing	NY	11374	Task Order - Rotation	\$124,405.00		\$10,856.00
CUNYWIDE	Educational Technology II	Ellucian Company L.P.	Chicago	IL	60693	Single Source ( d )	\$764,414.00		\$35,509.65
CUNYWIDE	Various Buildings Fire Alarm System Upgrade	Jacob Feinberg Katz & Michaeli Consulting Group LLC (WBE)	New York	NY	10118	RFP- Supplemental	\$427,030.00		\$168,390.00
Graduate Center	9th Floor Conference Room	Blair & Mui Dowd Architects, PC	New York	NY	10013	RFP-Task Order	\$492,782.00		\$16,037.25
Honors	Honors Fire Alarm Upgrade	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$48,120.00		\$541,607.26
Hostos CC	Air Handling Units	Dewberry Engineers Inc.	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$239,076.00		\$11,450.37
Hostos CC	Allied Health and Natural Science Building Complex	Flad Architects	New York	NY	10016	RFP- Task Order	\$9,321,429.00		\$109,795.22
Hunter	Air Handlers	Trane US Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	NYS-OGS	\$1,024,146.73	Yes	\$9,182.49
Hunter	Air Handling Unit Replacement	Trane US Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	NYS-OGS	\$930,199.72		\$905,975.00
Hunter	Chiller Replacement	Trane US Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	NYS-OGS	\$497,923.52	Yes	\$459,459.21
Hunter	Equipment	Aurora Storage Products	Aurora	IL	60506	Final Payment	\$4,848.00		\$4,848.00
Hunter	Furniture	Creative Library Concepts	Manalapan Towns	NJ	07726	Final Payment	\$37,081.20		\$37,081.20
Hunter	Furniture	Empire Office, Inc.	New York	NY	10016	Final Payment	\$10,128.00		\$10,128.00
Hunter	Furniture	HLF Furniture, Inc.	Belleville	MI	48111	Final Payment	\$257,657.40		\$257,657.40
Hunter	Furniture	Jasper Group	Jasper	IN	47546	Final Payment	\$10,354.21		\$10,354.21
Hunter	Furniture	Krueger International, Inc.	Green Bay	WI	54302	Final Payment	\$5,904.92		\$5,904.92
Hunter	Furniture	Krueger International, Inc.	Green Bay	WI	54302	Final Payment	\$44,299.01		\$44,299.01
Hunter	Furniture	OFS Brands, Inc.	New York	NY	10001	Final Payment	\$37,850.39		\$37,850.39
Hunter	Furniture	Source International Corp.	Sutton	MA	01590	Final Payment	\$39,715.41		\$39,715.41
Hunter	Furniture	Trendway Corp	Holland	MI	49424	Final Payment	\$22,498.13		\$17,123.41
Hunter	Glass Box Addition	Dattner Architects, D.P.C	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Supplemental	\$292,875.00		\$175,853.43
Hunter	Hunter Lab Renovation 2014	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP-Task Order	\$337,379.21		\$6,608.17
Hunter	Hunter Lab Renovation 2014	TDX Construction Corporation	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$4,934,976.00		\$69,938.43
Hunter	MSK Foundation Dewatering	Turner Construction Company	New York	NY	10014	Single Source ( e )	\$5,796,812.00		\$246,105.68
Hunter	Student Union Renovation	Calvert Wright Architecture PC	New York	NY	10019	RFP - Task Order	\$154,250.00		\$28,561.65
Hunter	Student Union Renovation (DASNY Fund)	Emtec Consultants, Professional Engineers, PLLC	Ronkonkoma	NY	11779	Task Order - Rotation	\$34,650.00		\$11,100.00
Hunter	Student Union Renovation (DASNY Fund)	TDX Construction Corporation	New York	NY	10001	RFP - Task Order	\$2,592,000.00		\$1,165,997.79
Kingsborough CC	Bursar Office Renovation	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Task Order	\$87,862.00		\$3,820.63
Kingsborough CC	HPE Building Pool Renovation	Superstructures	New York	NY	10005	RFP- Task Order	\$247,138.00		\$19,912.25
Kingsborough CC	Kingsborough CC Fire Alarm Upgrade	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$3,155.00		\$3,155.00
Kingsborough CC	T1 Building	Epic Management, Inc.	New York	NY	10118	RFP - Task Order	\$4,831,272.00		\$218,233.48
Kingsborough CC	T2 Building	Epic Management, Inc.	New York	NY	10118	RFP - Task Order	\$2,274,003.00		\$80,575.28
Kingsborough CC	U&P Buildings Fire Alarm Upgrades	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$2,582,109.61		\$173,452.29
Lehman	Bookstore Relocation	Ikon 5 Architects, LLC	Princeton	NJ	08540	RFP- Task Order	\$350,000.00		\$2,243.22
Lehman	Commend Emergency Telephone System	Siemens Industry Inc.	Florham Park	NJ	07932	NYS-OGS	\$566,127.68		\$566,127.68
Lehman	Concert Hall Addition	Michielli Wyetzner Architects	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$445,000.00		\$11,248.89
Lehman	Department of Social Work	Stephen Yablon Architects PLLC	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Task Order	\$659,941.00		\$14,234.62
Lehman	Gillet Hall Auditorium & Carman Lecture Halls	Elemental Architecture, LLC	New York	NY	10001	RFP-Task Order	\$421,120.00		\$70,344.00
Lehman	Labs Round III	Atane	New York	NY	10005	Task Order - Rotation	\$39,872.00		\$15,666.81
Lehman	Labs Round III	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Task Order	\$478,178.23		\$11,287.61

Lehman	Labs Round III	Langan Engineering & Environmental Services Inc.	New York	NY	10001	Task Order - Rotation	\$55,000.00		\$35,118.60
Lehman	Labs Round III	LiRo Program and Construction Management, P.C.	Syosset	NY	11791	RFP- Task Order	\$3,613,467.00		\$2,070,055.62
Lehman	Lovinger Theater ADA Compliance	Donald Blair Architects	New York	NY	10013	RFP- Task Order	\$255,484.83		\$46,744.46
Lehman	Nursing Education Center	Urbahn Architects PLLC	New York	NY	10018	RFP	\$2,906,850.28		\$53,479.03
Lehman	President's Housing Appraisal	Ateam Realty (MBE)	Little Neck	NY	11362	Discretionary RFQ MWBE	\$1,200.00	Yes	\$1,200.00
Lehman	Speech & Theater Amphitheater	Michielli Wyetzner Architects	New York	NY	10001	RFP-Task Order	\$350,050.00		\$70,236.84
Lehman	Teaching & Learning Commons	Curtis + Ginsberg Architects LLP (WBE)	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$430,575.00		\$8,091.72
Lehman	Teaching & Learning Commons	Curtis + Ginsberg Architects LLP (WBE)	New York	NY	10004	RFP- Supplemental	\$8,091.72		\$802.73
Medgar Evers	ADA Bathroom & Athletic Center	Stephen Yablon Architects PLLC	New York	NY	10018	RFP- Task Order	\$1,065,846.00		\$101,542.28
Medgar Evers	Bedford Ave. Site Reconstruction	SWA/Balsley	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order	\$461,580.13		\$44,840.37
Medgar Evers	Bedford Building Roof Replacement	Superstructures	New York	NY	10003	RFP-Task Order	\$335,459.00		\$8,470.00
Medgar Evers	Equipment	Visual Systems Group	McLean	VA	22102	Partial Payment	\$751,352.00		\$223,440.00
Medgar Evers	Equipment	Visual Systems Group	McLean	VA	22102	Final Payment	\$518,652.00		\$518,652.00
Medgar Evers	Equipment	Visual Systems Group	McLean	VA	22102	Final Payment	\$9,260.00		\$9,260.00
Medgar Evers	Security Camera System	A+ Technology & Security Solutions	Bayshore	NY	11706	Contracts Procured by Governmental Entities-DASNY	\$2,764,393.54		\$69,694.00
NYCCT	Equipment	Gaumard	Miami	FL	33196	Final Payment	\$22,843.00		\$22,843.00
NYCCT	Equipment	Henry Schein, Inc.	Melville	NY	11747	Final Payment	\$28,155.85		\$28,155.85
NYCCT	Equipment	Henry Schein, Inc.	Melville	NY	11747	Final Payment	\$38,986.99		\$38,986.99
NYCCT	Equipment	Pocket Nurse Enterprises, Inc.	Monaca	PA	15061	Partial Payment	\$143,800.65		\$13,299.27
NYCCT	Equipment	Simuluids	Saugerties	NY	12477	Partial Payment	\$30,995.00		\$30,700.00
NYCCT	Namm Cooling System	Trane US Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	NYS-OGS	\$1,124,056.27	Yes	\$1,141,256.04
NYCCT	Namm Cooling System	Urban Engineers of New York, P.C.	New York	NY	10119	Task Order - Rotation	\$11,350.00		\$1,292.50
NYCCT	New Academic Building	F.J. Sciamme Construction Co., Inc.	New York	NY	10005	RFP	\$297,433,231.00		\$8,786,163.50
NYCCT	New Academic Building	Genesys Engineering P.C.	Pelham	NY	10803	Contracts Procured by Governmental Entities-DASNY	\$299,500.00		\$16,904.01
NYCCT	New Academic Building	Municipal Testing Lab., Inc.	Hauppauge	NY	11788	Task Order - Mini RFP from prequalified list	\$3,183,650.00		\$23,075.00
NYCCT	New Academic Building	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	Single Source ( f )	\$15,308,825.00		\$424,597.01
NYCCT	Telephone Closet HVAC	Trane US Inc.	Long Island City	NY	11101	NYS-OGS	\$198,441.91	Yes	\$18,810.00
Queens	Campus Wide Security System Phase I	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$278,638.50		\$278,638.50
Queens	Fitzgerald Gym Floor	STV Construction, Inc.	New York	NY	10003	RFP- Task Order	\$3,253,055.30		\$33,745.85
Queens	Outdoor Athletic Field	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	RFP- Task Order	\$555,296.00		\$30,186.84
Queens	Perimeter Fence	Michielli Wyetzner Architects	New York	NY	10001	Partial Payment	\$96,899.70		\$16,147.57
Queens	President's Housing Appraisal	Ateam Realty	Little Neck	NY	11362	Discretionary RFQ MWBE	\$1,200.00	Yes	\$1,200.00
Queens	Queens ADA Bathroom	Future Tech Consultants of New York, Inc.	Mineloa	NY	11501	Task Order - Rotation	\$17,800.00		\$3,100.00
Queens	Queens ADA Bathroom	LiRo Engineers, Inc.	Syosset	NY	11791	Task Order - Rotation	\$4,740.00		\$4,686.60
Queens	Razran Hall Lab Renovation	Graf & Lewent Architects, LLP	Jamaica	NY	11432	RFP- Task Order	\$485,585.36		\$4,626.75
Queens	Remsen & SB Environmental Labs	Perkins Eastman Architects, PC	New York	NY	10003	RFP- Task Order	\$290,385.97		\$39,861.58
Queens	Rosenthal Library	Donald Blair Architects	New York	NY	10013	RFP-Task Order	\$255,186.82		\$12,241.49
Queens	Rosenthal Library	Donald Blair Architects	New York	NY	10013	RFP-Task Order	\$255,186.82		\$34,408.47
Queens	Steam Pipe Replacement	AECOM	New York	NY	10017	RFP - Task Order	\$5,963,674.00		\$134,750.01
Queens	TV Production Facility Upgrade	Emtec Consultants, Professional Engineers, PLLC	Ronkonkoma	NY	11779	Task Order - Mini RFP from prequalified list	\$43,500.00		\$43,500.00
Queens	Various Buildings Fire Alarm System Upgrade	Johnson Controls, Inc.	Hasbrouck Hts	NJ	07604	NYS-OGS	\$5,025,860.38	Yes	\$5,559,893.40
Queensborough CC	ASAP Building Reconstruction	Michielli Wyetzner Architects	New York	NY	10001	RFP- Task Order - Single Source	\$264,000.00		\$20,027.74
Queensborough CC	Purchase Cloverdale	Hollis Hills Bayside Jewish Center	Oakland Gardens	NY	11364	Single Source	\$4,000,000.00		\$3,925,003.50
Queensborough CC	Purchase Cloverdale	Liberty Land Abstract	Bayside	NY	11361	RFQ	\$4,200,000.00		\$75,700.00
School of Labor and Urban Studies	Central Office 25 West 43rd Street	APF 28 W 44 Owner LP	New York	NY	10036	Through landlord	\$1,255,000.00		\$1,009,792.62
School of Public Health	Ground Floor Expansion 55 West 125 Street	BVK 55 West 125th St LLC	New York	NY	10027	Through landlord	\$1,450,536.00		\$1,373,791.42

York	159th Street DRI	Saratoga Associates	Saratoga Springs	NY	12866	RFP- Task Order	\$205,968.00	\$8,000.00
York	Air Conditioning IT Closets	Urban Engineers of New York, P.C.	New York	NY	10121	Task Order - Rotation	\$44,540.00	\$3,415.00
York	Equipment	Anixter	Albany	NY	12205	Final Payment	\$15,983.68	\$15,983.68
York	Equipment	Dell	Round Rock	TX	78664	Final Payment	\$19,242.40	\$19,242.40
York	Equipment	Gray Bar	New York	NY	10170	Final Payment	\$8,924.84	\$8,924.84
York	Equipment	PCMG Inc.	Noblesville	IN	46060	Final Payment	\$44,640.00	\$44,640.00
York	Equipment	PSSC Labs	Lake Forest	CA	92630	Final Payment	\$73,995.00	\$73,995.00
York	Equipment & Installation Serv.	Webhouse Inc. (SDVOB)	Garden City	NY	11530	Partial Payment	\$1,845,931.06	\$1,765,203.71
York	Interior Renovation Projects	EPIC	New York	NY	10118	RFP- Task Order	\$8,624,677.29	\$236,195.39
Grand Total								\$95,662,561.87

( a ) Resnick 255 Greenwich, LLC holds the lease for the site of this program.

( b ) Includes multiple purchases.

( c ) CUNY Law - Two Court Square is the annual condo fee.

( d ) Ellucian Degree Works is the University Academic Advisement System in effect since 2004 to provide information on degree requirements, course progression and degree completion rates to over 20,000 students within the CUNY system. For CUNY to maximize the benefit from the application, its new functions, and be able to implement future releases, this upgrade and consulting services are critical.

( e ) Turner Laborers and Site Safety Managers have been serving this MSK building since 2014 and continuity and cost as well as Local 79 Labor requirements were deemed sufficiently significant to reatining Turner.

( f ) Perkins Eastman was part of the team of the original developer chosen through a competitive process for a project which initially included an academic component and a residential tower. For 2.5 years Perkins Eastman worked on the development of the program and the pre-schematic and schematic design phases of the project. When CUNY terminated its partnership with the developer and limited the project to only the academic component, it was determined that Perkins Eastman's understanding of the program and their involvement in the previous design made them uniquely qualified to continue development of the project in the most expeditious and efficient manner available.

\*The firms highlighted in gray are NYS Certified MWBE firms.

\*The firm highlighted in blue is a NYS Certified SDVOB firm.

Exhibit B,

**CITY UNIVERSITY CONSTRUCTION FUND  
GUIDELINES FOR PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS**

(as amended through June 1, 2021),

Section A. Introduction

These Guidelines set forth the operative policy and instructions of the City University Construction Fund (the "Fund") regarding the use, award, monitoring, and reporting of Procurement Contracts in the actual or estimated amount of \$5,000 or more.

These Guidelines are intended to satisfy the requirements of Section 2879 of the New York State Public Authorities Law and to provide an internal and administrative policy for the Fund's trustees, officers and employees. These Guidelines do not provide third parties with any rights or remedies.

Section B. Definitions

1. "Construction Management/Build (CM/Build) Contract" means a Procurement Contract pursuant to which the Fund hires a construction management firm to manage the overall construction project and to bid and hold each underlying contract for materials, labor and services related to the construction of the project. The Fund may employ a CM/Build Contract only when the estimated cost of construction is \$3 million or more.
2. "Executive Director" means the Executive Director of the Fund or his/her designee,
3. "Fund" means the CUNY Construction Fund acting through its Board of Trustees or pursuant to a delegation of powers or duties to one or more of its trustees, officers, agents or employees as may be permitted by Section 6274 of the New York State Education Law.
4. "Job Order Contract" (JOC) means a Procurement Contract resulting from a competitive bid process for an indefinite quantity of construction materials and services, which are specified in a Fund-approved catalog by type and unit price, for the Fund to use on specified projects to repair, maintain and upgrade CUNY facilities; the lowest responsible bidder shall bid the lowest 'adjustment factor' by which the Fund will multiply the fixed unit prices established by the catalog; the contract amount shall be the product of the 'adjustment factor' times the catalog prices for the materials and services that the Fund identifies for use on all of each individual project covered by the contract documents.
5. "Minority Business Enterprise" and a "Women-Owned Business Enterprise" shall have the meanings set forth in Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
6. Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business shall have the meaning as established by New York State Executive Law 17-B.
7. Procurement Contract" means any written agreement for the acquisition of goods, services (including but not limited to professional services) or interests in real property of any kind or for construction, or any combination of these. The term does not include any agreement for employment in the civil services or by the Research Foundation of the City

Deleted: 2

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Title, Indent: Left: 2.12", Right: 2.12", Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: Exactly 13.7 pt

Deleted: 1, 2020¶

Deleted: of the CUNY Construction Fund

University of New York. "Procurement Contractors" means any counter-party to a Procurement Contract with the Fund.

Deleted: \_\_\_\_\_Section Break (Next Page)\_\_\_\_\_

Section C. Selection of Procurement Contractors and Award and Board Review of Procurement Contracts

1. Selection Policy

Consistent with these Guidelines, the Fund shall select Procurement Contractors in a manner that (a) is fair and efficient, (b) seeks high quality goods, services, and/or construction at reasonable prices, and (c) satisfies state law in providing an opportunity for Minority Business Enterprises, ~~Women-Owned Business Enterprises and Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business~~ to compete for Procurement Contracts so as to facilitate the awarding of a fair share of such contracts to such enterprises.

Deleted: and

2. Selection Mechanisms

The Fund shall use the following mechanisms to select Procurement Contractors for specified goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction:

- (a) Competitive Bids. The Fund may solicit fixed-price bids and may award the Procurement Contract to a responsive, responsible bidder on the basis of the lowest price.
- (b) Request for Proposals. The Fund may solicit specific proposals and award the Procurement Contract on the basis of an evaluation of the characteristics, quality and cost of such proposals, as set forth in the form of solicitation, including, without limitation, proffered security where security is requested or appropriate.
- (c) Negotiated Procurement. The Fund may negotiate the terms of a Procurement Contract under the circumstances and subject to the conditions set forth below. Negotiations may be preceded by preliminary discussions to explore the feasibility of the procurement. A Negotiated Procurement may be used in combination with a Request for Proposals.
  - (i) In the case of a Procurement Contract for goods, services and/or construction, the Fund may negotiate with at least three vendors (or, in compelling circumstances, with fewer vendors) and award a Procurement Contract on terms that serve the best interests of the Fund where it is not practical and/or advantageous to make an award by Competitive Bids or Request for Proposals because (A) the constraints of a time-sensitive require a prompt selection and award, such the need to comply with a court order, to secure funding or avoid the loss of funding or to cure the default or unavailability of an existing contractor; (B) there is a limited number of vendors available and able to perform the work; (C) an existing contract needs to be extended beyond the contractually stipulated term and extensions; and (D) there is a compelling need to use an existing contractor to perform additional work on a later phase of a project.
  - (ii) In the case of a contract for the acquisition of an interest in or the

Deleted: primarily

Deleted: or

development of real property, the Fund may negotiate with one or more vendors and award a Procurement Contract in the best interests of the Fund and in accordance with all applicable guidelines and requirements.

(iii) Single Source. The single source procurement method may be used in the circumstance where there is more than one vendor capable of providing the needed commodity or service, however, one vendor clearly represents the best possible source due to several factors, including price, technical requirements, capabilities, expertise, resources, facilities, and schedule. Prior to proceeding with a single source purchase, the Fund project manager must prepare a non-competitive single source justification memorandum for review by the Procurement Director and approval by the Executive Director or designee. When the Executive Director determines that there is only a single responsible source for any goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction required by the Fund, the Fund may award a Procurement Contract without competitive procedures. A record setting forth the circumstances under which any such contract was awarded, shall be provided in the annual report of the Fund prepared for the year in which the contract is awarded.

(iv) Sole Source. Sole Source is defined as a procurement in which there is only one vendor capable of supplying the required commodities or services. Prior to proceeding with a sole source procurement, the Fund project manager must prepare a non-competitive sole source justification memorandum for review by the Procurement Director and approval by the Executive Director or designee. A record setting forth the circumstances under which any such contract was awarded shall be provided in the annual report of the Fund prepared for the year in which the contract is awarded.

3. Emergency. In the event of an emergency involving danger to life or property or other unforeseen occurrences requiring immediate action that cannot await the completion of other procurement mechanisms, the Executive Director may award a Procurement Contract without competitive procedures. For any such Procurement Contract involving an actual or estimated expense of \$10,000 or more, the Executive Director shall, prior to executing the contract, notify four Trustees of the Fund of the nature and circumstances of the emergency and obtain their approval as to the award. The Executive Director shall present a report of the award of such an emergency contract as an information item at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees. A record setting forth the circumstances under which any such emergency contract was awarded shall be provided in the annual report of the Fund prepared for the year in which the contract is awarded.

4. Contracts Procured by Government Entities. The Fund may award a Procurement Contract through existing contracts awarded by government entities, i.e., the State of New York, including any authority or public benefit corporation of the State of New York, the City of New York, including the Department of Education, or the

Deleted: .

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Right: 0", Space Before: 10 pt, Numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.37" + Indent at: 1.62", Tab stops: Not at 1.13"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: let

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: let.

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.38" + Indent at: 0.63"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.63"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.38" + Indent at: 0.63"



Federal Government, provided that the Procurement Contract contains material terms, including price, that are substantially the same as or more favorable than the material terms of the contract with the government entity.

5. Procurement Cards (P-Cards). The Executive Director shall be permitted to utilize Procurement Cards, a flexible, convenient and efficient means of processing payments for one-time and recurring monthly purchases, for payment of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of the duties of that office, such as subscriptions, parking lot fees, E-Z Pass tolls and telecommunication charges.
6. Discretionary Purchasing. In accordance with Section 2879 of the New York State Public Authorities Law, the Fund may use its discretion in the selection of vendors to compete for Procurement Contracts for goods, services, including architectural services and engineering services, and/or construction, as follows:
  - i. Eligibility to compete for such Procurement Contracts may be limited by the Fund to those vendors Certified as Minority-Owned Business Enterprises or Women-Owned Business Enterprises by Empire State Development's Division of Minority and Women's Business Development or Certified as Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Businesses by the New York State Office of General Services Division of Service-Disabled Veterans' Business Development. This is to provide an opportunity for such entities to compete for Procurement Contracts so as to facilitate the awarding by the Fund of a fair share of such Procurement Contracts to such entities, consistent with State law and these Guidelines.
  - ii. The total value of a Procurement Contract awarded to an eligible MWBE or SDVOB vendor under CUCF's Discretionary Purchasing authority cannot exceed \$500,000. The value of a Procurement Contract awarded to other than an MWBE or SDVOB vendor under CUCF's Discretionary Purchasing authority cannot exceed \$250,000.
  - iii. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, all other provisions of these Guidelines remain in effect.
7. Other Mechanisms Approved by the Fund's Board. The Fund may use any other procurement mechanism the Board of Trustees shall deem appropriate.
8. Advertisement Requirements for Competitive Selection Mechanisms

The solicitation of bids, proposals or submissions for a Procurement Contract shall be made by the Fund in a manner determined by the Executive Director to be the most cost-effective for providing reasonable competition for the Fund's procurement contracts. This may include advertisement on appropriate electronic platforms and in newspapers or trade journals, direct mailings and such other outreach mechanisms as are consistent with the policy of these Guidelines with respect to firms considered by the Executive Director to be

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0.63", No bullets or numbering

**Formatted:** Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.38" + Indent at: 0.63"

**Deleted:** \_\_\_\_\_Section Break (Next Page)\_\_\_\_\_

**Formatted:** List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 1.24", Hanging: 0.39", Right: 0.3", Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.29" + Indent at: 1.63", Tab stops: 1.62", Left + 1.62", Left

**Deleted:** under

**Deleted:** ¶

**Formatted:** List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Hanging: 0.43", Right: 0.24", Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.29" + Indent at: 1.63", Tab stops: 1.62", Left + 1.62", Left

**Deleted:** ¶

**Formatted:** Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.38" + Indent at: 0.63"

**Deleted:** in

**Deleted:**

qualified, including, without limitation, Minority-Owned Business Enterprises, Women-Owned Business Enterprises and Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses.

Deleted:

Deleted: and

- (a) Procurement Opportunities Newsletter. The Executive Director may solicit bids or proposals by placing a listing in the New York State Contract Reporter, and any other official listing of bidding opportunities established under Article 4-C of the Economic Development Law or comparable statutes. Any such listing shall be made in conformity with the rules and requirements established by the responsible agency, such as New York State Department of Economic Development, Division for Small Business, that are in effect at the time the listing is to be made.

Deleted: or

Deleted: .

- (b) General Contents of Solicitations. Except as otherwise required (for example, by the applicable rules of the Department of Economic Development referred to in item (a) above), each solicitation by the Fund shall include: (i) the name of the Fund, (ii) a description of the goods, services, and/or construction sought, the location where goods are to be delivered or services and/or construction are to be provided and the contract term, (iii) the criteria that the Fund will use to evaluate proposal submissions and make award, if any; (iv) the physical location and/or electronic address where bids or proposals are to be submitted, (v) the date when bids or proposals are due, (vi) a description of any eligibility requirements or preferences and (vii) any other information that the Executive Director deems useful.

Formatted: Right: 0"

Deleted: i

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: such

- (c) Antidiscrimination Language in Fund Solicitations. All solicitations of bids or proposals for any procurement contract shall contain or make reference to the following:

- (i) The contractor will not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, or marital status, and will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members (as herein defined), including, without limitation, women, are afforded equal opportunity without discrimination. Such programs shall include, but not be limited to, recruitment, employment, job assignments, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selections for training or retaining, including apprenticeship and on-the-job training;
- (ii) At the request of the Fund, the contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding and which is involved in the performance of the contract with the authority to furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor union or representative shall not discriminate because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative will cooperate in the implementation of the contractor's

obligations hereunder;

- (iii) The contractor will state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor in the performance of the contract with the Fund, that will qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunity without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or marital status; and
  - (iv) The contractor will include the provisions of subdivisions (i) through (iii) of this section in every subcontract or purchase order in such a manner that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor as to its work in connection with the contract with the Fund.
- (d) Procurement Contracts for \$50,000 or More. If the actual or estimated cost of a Procurement Contract is fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) or more, any solicitation shall be published once in the New York State Contract Reporter, published by Empire State Development and at least once in a newspaper of general circulation.
- (e) Timing. At least fifteen (15) business days shall elapse between the first solicitation of bids, proposals or submissions or the first publication of any advertisement for bids, proposals or submissions and the due date for the submission of bids, proposals or submissions.

#### 9. Award of Procurement Contracts

Minimum Solicitation. Except as otherwise provided in these Guidelines, the Executive Director shall solicit bids, proposals or submissions from at least three (3) contractors that are qualified to provide the goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction sought by the Fund and have agreed to consent to the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions required by Section E of these Guidelines. Subject to subsections (b) and (c) hereof, the Fund shall award the Procurement Contract on the basis of the most favorable combination of criteria applicable respectively to goods, services, interests in real estate or construction, such as quality, ability to deliver or perform in a timely manner, price or fee structure, location, technical qualifications, financial stability, past performance, staff availability and experience.

- (a) Contracts for \$10,000 or More. No Procurement Contract involving an actual or estimated expense of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) or more shall be awarded by the Fund unless, prior to execution of the contract by the Fund, no fewer than four (4) trustees of the Fund approve the contract.

- (b) Contracts for \$25,000 or More. Each Procurement Contract for supplies, materials or equipment involving an estimated expense of twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) or more shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder furnishing required security, if security is to be required, after obtaining competitive bids, proposals or submissions for such contract in the manner prescribed herein; provided that prior to execution of such contract by the Fund, no fewer than four (4) trustees of the Fund

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0"

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.87", Space Before: 0.05 pt, Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1", Tab stops: 1.12", Left

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

approve the contract.

- (c) Construction Management/Build (CM/Build) Contracts. The Executive Director is authorized to enter into CM/Build contracts, as defined herein; provided that prior to execution of such contract by the Fund, no fewer than four (4) trustees of the Fund approve the contract. A record setting forth the justification for utilizing a CM/Build contract shall be provided to the Board. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, award shall be made to the highest qualified vendor, after successful negotiation of a fair and reasonable price.
- (d) Job Order Contract (JOC). The Executive Director is authorized to enter into JOC contracts, as defined herein.
- (e) Alternative Selection Mechanisms. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Executive Director may recommend that the Board approve procedures for the use and application of a particular selection mechanism other than those set forth in these Guidelines.

#### 10. Board Review of Procurement Contracts

For each Procurement Contract to which the Fund is a party, the Executive Director will document and describe for the Board the procedure used to select the Procurement Contractor.

#### 11. NYS Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) Review of Certain Procurement Contracts

Effective February 7, 2020, CUCF is required to submit Procurement Contracts to the OSC for contracts valued at \$250,000 or more for construction, commodities, computer equipment (including software and hardware), printing, and non-construction related services for OSC pre-award audit in accordance with NYS Division of the Budget (DOB) Bulletin H-1034.

#### Section D. Minority-Owned Business Enterprise and Women-Owned Business Enterprise Participation

In accordance with New York State Executive Law Article 15-A, CUCF is required to ensure that Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprise certified by the New York State Empire Development Corp.(ESD), have an equal opportunity to receive and participate in CUCF procurements, and to report upon such utilization. It is the intent of the CUCF to reach, on an annual basis, MWBE utilization goals as established by New York State Executive Law Article 15-A. In order to promote the engagement of Minority-Owned Business and Women-Owned Businesses as Procurement Contractors, the Fund shall solicit offers from MWBEs known to supply the goods or provide the services, interests in real estate and/or construction sought. If the provision of any goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction under a prime contract permits or requires the use of subcontractors, said prime contract shall require the prime contractor to act

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.13", Hanging: 0.88"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.61", No bullets or numbering

affirmatively to secure participation by MWBEs in such subcontract and to report the nature and extent of such efforts to the Fund.

1. Solicitation

In order to promote the engagement of Minority Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises as Procurement Contractors, the Fund shall solicit offers from Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises known to supply the goods or provide the services, interests in real estate and/or construction sought. If the provision of any goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction under a prime contract permits or requires the use of a subcontractors, said prime contract shall require the prime contractor to act affirmatively to secure participation by Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises in such subcontract and to report the nature and extent of such efforts to the Fund.

Deleted:

2. Maintenance of List of Procurement Contractors Including Minority Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises

The Executive Director shall prepare and update annually a list of potential sources including Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises of goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction that are regularly purchased by the Fund or that the Fund expects to purchase in the following year. Executive Director's report to the Board shall include: (a) the list, and (b) the procedures established to identify new sources for the list and to notify such new sources of the opportunity to bid for contracts for the purchase of goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction. In identifying qualified sources, including Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises, the Executive Director shall seek the assistance of agencies of the State of New York and the City of New York including the Department of Commerce, the Office of General Services, and the Office of Contract Compliance and Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises of the State and the Office of Minority Business Development of the City.

Deleted:

3. Qualification as a Minority-Owned Business Enterprise or Women-Owned Business Enterprises

The Executive director shall require each contractor seeking to be considered as a Minority Business Enterprise or Women-Owned Business Enterprise by the Fund to submit a written certification document as a Minority-Owned Business Enterprise or Women-Owned Business Enterprise as issued by the New York State Empire Development Corp. The Fund shall monitor the entities considered to be Minority-Owned Business Enterprises and Women-Owned Business Enterprises to ensure their continued satisfaction of the criteria set forth in these Guidelines.

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left: 0.5"

Deleted: statement describing how it qualifies

Deleted: ¶  
¶

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Deleted: E

Section E. Standard Nondiscrimination and Compliance Provisions to be Made a Part of Procurement Contracts

Each Procurement Contract shall include the following nondiscrimination and compliance provisions:

1. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, or marital status and will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members (as herein defined), including, without limitation, women, are afforded equal opportunity without discrimination. Such programs shall include, but not be limited to, recruitment, employment, job assignments, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selections for training or retraining, including apprenticeship and on-the-job training. The contractor agrees to post, in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the substance of this nondiscrimination provision.
2. At the request of the Fund, the contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding and which is involved in the performance of the contract with the authority to furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor union or representative shall not discriminate because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative will cooperate in the implementation of the contractor's obligations hereunder;
3. The contractor will state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor in the performance of the contract with the Fund, that all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunity without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or marital status;
4. The contractor will include the provisions of subdivisions (1) through (3) of this section in every subcontract or purchase order in such a manner that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor as to its work in connection with the contract with the Fund.
5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of this contract and of the rules, regulations, and orders issued by the Fund to implement the same.
6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by the Fund and by any applicable rules, regulations, and any orders issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records and accounts by the Fund for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with this contract and such rules, regulations and order.
7. If the contractor does not comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of this contract or with any such rules, regulations or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further contracts involving projects under the auspices of the Fund and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as are provided by rule, regulations or order issued by the Fund, or as otherwise provided by law.

**Deleted:** —Section Break (Next Page)—

8. The contractor will include the foregoing provisions in every subcontract or purchase order issued in connection with the performance of the prime procurements contract as well as in any agreement with architects, engineers, accountants and legal counsel for professional services, by incorporating the text or by reference thereto, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor, professional firm or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Fund may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for non-compliance.
9. The provisions of this section shall be deemed supplementary to, and not in lieu of or in substitution for the provisions of the New York State Labor Law relating to nondiscrimination, and other applicable Federal, State or City law, ordinance, rule and regulation.
10. Each contractor having a contract containing these provisions shall file, and shall cause each of his subcontractors to file, compliance reports with the Fund. Compliance reports shall be filed within such time and shall contain such information as to the practices, policies, programs, employment policies, and employment statistics of the contractors and each subcontractor, and shall be in such form as the Fund may prescribe.
11. Whenever the contractor or subcontractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding with a labor union or an agency referring workers or providing or supervising apprenticeships or training for such workers, the compliance report shall include such information as to such labor union's or agency's practices and policies affecting compliance as the Fund may prescribe; provided that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of a labor union or an agency referring workers or providing or supervising apprenticeship or training, and such labor union or certify to the Fund as part of his compliance report, and shall set forth what efforts he has made to obtain such information.
12. The Fund may direct that any bidder or prospective contractor or subcontractor shall submit, as part of his compliance report, a statement in writing, signed by an authorized officer or agent on behalf of any labor union or any agency referring workers or providing or supervising apprenticeship or other training, with which the bidder or prospective contractor deals, with supporting information, to the effect that the signer's practice and policies do not discriminate on the ground of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or marital status, and that the signer either will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the policy and provisions of this contract or that it consents and agrees that recruitment, employment, and the terms and conditions of employment under the proposed contract shall be in accordance with the purposes and provisions of this contract. In the event that the union or the agency shall refuse to execute such a statement, the compliance report shall so certify and set forth what efforts have been made to secure such a statement, and such additional factual material as the Fund may require.

Deleted: n

Deleted: on

#### Section F. Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business (SDVOB) Participation

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

In accordance with New York State Executive Law Article 17-B CUCF is required to ensure that SDVOBs, certified by the New York State Office of General Services

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.69", No bullets or numbering

(OGS), have an equal opportunity to receive and participate in CUCF procurements, and to report upon such utilization. It is the intent of the CUCF to reach, on an annual basis, SDVOB utilization goals as established by New York State Executive Law Article 17-B. In order to promote the engagement of Service- Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses as Procurement Contractors, the Fund shall solicit offers from SDVOBs known to supply the goods or provide the services, interests in real estate and/or construction sought. If the provision of any goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction under a prime contract permits or requires the use of subcontractors, said prime contract shall require the prime contractor to act affirmatively to secure participation by SDVOBs in such subcontract and to report the nature and extent of such efforts to the Fund.

#### 1. Solicitation

In order to promote the engagement of Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprises as Procurement Contractors, the Fund shall solicit offers from Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Enterprises known to supply the goods or provide the services, interests in real estate and/or construction sought. If the provision of any goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction under a prime contract permits or requires the use of a subcontractors, said prime contract shall require the prime contractor to act affirmatively to secure participation by Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Enterprises in such subcontract and to report the nature and extent of such efforts to the Fund.

#### 2. Maintenance of List of Procurement Contractors Including Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprises

The Executive Director shall prepare and update annually a list of potential sources including Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprises of goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction that are regularly purchased by the Fund or that the Fund expects to purchase in the following year. Executive Director's report to the Board shall include: (a) the list, and (b) the procedures established to identify new sources for the list and to notify such new sources of the opportunity to bid for contracts for the purchase of goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction. In identifying qualified sources, including Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprises, the Executive Director shall seek the assistance of agencies of the State of New York the Office of General Services.

#### 3. Qualification as a Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprises

The Executive director shall require each contractor seeking to be considered as a Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise by the Fund to submit a written certification document as issued by the New York State Office of General Services – Division of Service Disabled Veterans' Business Development. The Fund shall monitor the entities considered to be Service Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Enterprises to ensure their continued satisfaction of the criteria set forth in these Guidelines.

##### Formatted

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left: 0.86", Right: 0.29", Space Before: 3.7 pt

##### Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

##### Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline, Condensed by 0.1 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.86"

Formatted

##### Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.86"



Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering

#### Section G. Dispute Resolution Process

All Procurement Contracts for an amount equal to or in excess of \$25,000 shall include a provision for resolving disputes with the Fund, including but not limited to such matters as the scope of work required by the contract, the interpretation of the contract and the amount to be paid for extra work. Such a provision shall delineate a process that allows disputes to be resolved directly and efficiently between the Fund, or its designee, and the contractor. At a minimum, it shall (1) define when a dispute arises for resolution by the process; (2) set forth any limitations and exclusions affecting the subject matter of a dispute; (3) designate the Fund's officers to whom the dispute must be directed; (4) specify the form and content of notices and other documents to be submitted and the deadlines by which they must be submitted; and (5) provide for any meetings to be convened as part of the dispute resolution process. In addition, in the event that the dispute is not resolved directly between the parties, the dispute resolution provision shall provide for a third party mediator to further review and resolve the dispute, with the parties to share equally in the expense of such mediation.

#### Section H. Procurement Contracts with Former Trustees, Officers or Employees of the Fund

The Fund may not enter into any Procurement Contract with a former trustee, officer or employee of the Fund, unless that action complies with (1) the Code of Conduct for the Trustees of the Fund and (2) all applicable laws and regulations, including, without limitation, the New York Public Officers Law.

#### Section I. Preparation of Annual Report on Procurement Contracts

1. The Fund shall annually prepare and approve a report on summarizing the procurement activity of the Fund for the reporting period and the Procurement Contracts entered into by the Fund during the reporting period or otherwise performed by the Fund during the reporting period. The Fund's annual procurement contract report shall include:

- (a) ~~the~~ Guidelines;
- (b) an explanation of the Guidelines and any amendments thereto made since the last annual report;
- (c) a list of all Procurement Contracts entered into since the last annual report;
- (d) a list of the Procurement Contractors performing services since the last annual report;
- (e) the selection process used in connection with each Procurement Contract;
- (f) a list of contract prices, fees, commissions or other charges paid to each Procurement Contractor; and
- (g) any statements required by law relating to the Fund's Guidelines or Procurement

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Contracts.

2. The Fund's annual report on Procurement Contracts may be made a part of any other annual report.

Section J. Distribution of Annual Report on Procurement Contracts

1. The Fund shall submit its annual report on Procurement Contracts to the Division of the Budget.
2. The Fund shall supply copies of its annual report on procurement contracts of the following:
  - (a) Department of Audit and Control of the State of New York,
  - (b) New York State Senate Finance committee, and
  - (c) New York State Assembly Ways and Means Committee.
3. The Fund shall make copies of its annual report on Procurement Contracts available to the public upon reasonable request therefore.

Section K. Amendment of These Guidelines

The Fund shall have the power from time to time to amend these Guidelines by vote of a majority of the Board.

Section L. Effect of Noncompliance with Guidelines

Failure by the Fund to comply with the provisions of these Guidelines shall not alter, affect the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract or agreement for goods, services, interests in real estate and/or construction to which the Fund is a party.

Section M. Prompt Payment

Deleted: \_\_\_\_\_Section Break (Next Page)\_\_\_\_\_

1. Authorization - This Statement of Prompt Payment Policy is adopted by the Members of the Board of the CUCF pursuant to the provisions of Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law.
2. Purpose - It is the purpose of this Statement of Prompt Payment Policy of the CUCF to set forth the standards for the payment of bills within specific periods and to prescribe interest charges in situations where payments do not conform to these standards, as provided by section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law.
3. Prompt Payment Policy - It shall be the policy of the CUCF to process contract payments efficiently and expeditiously so as to assure payment in a timely manner to firms and organizations which do business with the CUCF and to avoid, to the greatest extent practicable, the payment of interest in cases where prompt payment does not occur as provided herein.
4. Rules and Regulations – Pursuant to Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law, the CUCF

promulgated Prompt Payment Guidelines, effective July 1, 2014. The Guidelines may be amended from time to time as needed to comply with the Public Authorities Law.

5. Definitions - The following terms shall have the following meanings unless the context shall indicate another of different meaning or intent:

- (a) "CUCF" means the City University Construction Fund.
- (b) "Designated Payment Office" means the office designated by the CUCF to which a proper invoice is to be submitted by a contractor.
- (c) "Prompt Payment" means payment of a debt due and owing by the CUCF before interest accrues thereon pursuant to this Statement of Prompt Payment Policy.
- (d) "Proper Invoice" means a written request for a contract payment that is submitted by a contractor setting forth the description, price and quantity of goods, property, or services delivered or rendered, in such form and supported by such other substantiating documentation as the CUCF may reasonably require.
- (e) "Receipt of an Invoice" means (i) the date on which a Proper Invoice is actually received in the Designated Payment Office, or (ii) the date on which the CUCF, or other entity on whose behalf the CUCF is acting, received the purchased goods, property, or services covered by the Proper Invoice, whichever is later.
- (f) "Set-off" means the reduction by the CUCF of a payment due to a contractor by an amount equal to the amount of an unpaid legally enforceable debt owed by the contractor to the CUCF.

Formatted: Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Right, Indent: Left: 0.94", No bullets or numbering

6. Scope - This Statement of Prompt Payment Policy shall be applicable to all contract payments. A contract payment is a payment to a contractor pursuant to a written contract, or an amendment thereto, signed by an Authorized Officer of the CUCF and of the contractor, a fully executed change order or an executed purchase order. A contractor is a person, partnership, private corporation, limited liability company, or association:

- (a) selling materials, equipment or supplies or leasing property or equipment to the CUCF;
- (b) constructing, reconstructing, rehabilitating or repairing facilities or other improvements for or on behalf of the CUCF; or
- (c) rendering or providing services to the CUCF pursuant to a contract.

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

7. Prompt Payment Procedure - Each contractor requesting payment shall submit a Proper Invoice and adequate documentation to support the work, services or goods provided to the Designated Payment Office.

- (a) In the case of invoices submitted by architects, engineers, contractors and other consultants pursuant to contracts awarded by the CUCF for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or other improvements or facilities comprising all or part of a project, the vendor payment unit is the Designated Payment Office. Proper Invoices submitted to the vendor payment unit will be transmitted to the CUCF project manager assigned to the project for approval. Following the return of the approved proper invoice to the vendor payment unit, a payment will be processed. Payment will be made no later than 30 days, except under the circumstances specified in subdivision

- (d) of this section, after receipt of such proper invoice at the designated payment office.
- (b) For all other invoices for contract payments not covered by paragraph (a), the Finance Office of the CUCF in New York, New York is the Designated Payment Office. Proper Invoices submitted by the tenth of the month will be paid by the last day of the month, but in any event payment will be made no later than 30 days after receipt of such Proper Invoice.
- (c) If a proper invoice is not paid within the periods described in (a) or (b) above, such payment will be subject to interest at the overpayment rate set by the N.Y.C. Comptroller, as agent for CUCF, and the N.Y.C. Office of Management and Budget (OMB).
- (d) In accordance with subparagraph (v) of paragraph (A) of subdivision 3 of Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law, when the following facts and circumstances exist, the CUCF may, to the extent necessary, extend the payment date of a proper invoice to 45 days after receipt. The facts and circumstances may include, but shall not be limited to:
- (a) a contract for which a prior overpayment has been made;
  - (b) a contract which is subject to a mechanics' lien;
  - (c) a contract which is subject to a notice of prevailing wage withholding;
  - (d) when the CUCF has been notified that an entity contracting with the CUCF or the principals thereof are the subject of criminal investigation or indictment relating to the business activities of the entity;
  - (e) those instances when the CUCF has reason to believe that the entity contracting with the CUCF has provided a false statement or material misstatement in connection with the contract.
  - (f) when the CUCF must rely on tests by a third party reported directly to the CUCF as a prerequisite for payment.
  - (g) the goods and services were not rendered in the manner detailed in the contract requirements.

8. Sources of Funds Available for Payment of Interest - The CUCF holds or has control of moneys which represent the proceeds of the issuance of its obligations or are on deposit in operating funds of the CUCF derived primarily from its fees and charges, from which it may pay interest on Proper Invoices with respect to which Prompt Payment is not made.

9. Extension of Prompt Payment Date - The date by which a contract payment may be made without the payment of interest may be extended when any of the following facts or conditions exists:

- (a) in accordance with specific statutory or contractual provision, payment must be preceded by an inspection period, the receipt of a signed receiving report in the case of the purchase of goods for an entity other than the CUCF itself, or by an audit to determine the resources applied or used by a contractor in fulfilling the terms of the contract;
- (b) the necessary state government appropriation required to authorize payment has yet to be enacted;
- (c) a Proper Invoice must be examined by the federal government or other governmental entities prior to payment; and,

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

- (d) such date by which contract payment must be made is modified in accordance with section 11 below.

Deleted: a

10. Interest Eligibility and Computation - In order for the CUCF not to be liable for the payment of interest, contract payment must be made within the periods described in section 7 after the receipt of an invoice for the amount of the contract payment due; except when the contract payment is of the type where the facts and conditions are as defined pursuant to section 9 above. Any time taken to satisfy or rectify any of the facts or conditions described in section 9 above shall extend the date by which contract payment must be made in order for the CUCF not to become liable for interest payments by an equal period of time. The CUCF shall not be liable for the payment of interest when such interest is less than ten dollars. Notification of Defects - The CUCF shall have 15 calendar days after receipt of an invoice by the Designated Payment Office to notify the contractor of (a) defects in the delivered goods, property, or services, (b) defects in the invoice, or (c) suspected improprieties of any kind; and the existence of such defects or improprieties shall prevent the commencement of the time period specified in section 7 of this Statement. When the CUCF fails to notify a contractor of such defects or suspected improprieties within 15 calendar days of receiving the invoice, the number of days allowed for payment of the corrected proper invoice will be reduced by the number of days between the fifteenth day and the day that notification was transmitted to the contractor. If the CUCF, in such situations, fails to provide reasonable grounds for its contention that a defect or impropriety exists, the date by which contract payment must be made in order for the CUCF not to become liable for interest payments shall be calculated from the date of receipt of an invoice.

11. Predetermined Interval Payments - A Proper Invoice submitted by the contractor shall be required to initiate any payment, except where the contract provides that the contractor will be paid at predetermined intervals without having to submit an invoice for each such scheduled payment and, for the purposes of determining eligibility for payment of interest and subject to the exception and time-to-rectify provisions of sections 9 and 10 above, the date by which contract payment must be made in order for the CUCF not to become liable for interest payments shall be the payment due date specified in accordance with the contract.

12. Inapplicability of Statement - The provisions of this Statement shall not apply to payments due and owing by the CUCF:

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

- (a) under the eminent domain procedure law;
- (b) as interest allowed on judgments rendered by a court pursuant to any provision of law other than Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law;
- (c) to the federal government; to any state agency or its instrumentalities; to any duly constituted unit of local government including, but not limited to, counties, cities, towns, villages, school districts, special districts, or any of their related instrumentalists; to any other public CUCF or public benefit corporation; or to its employees when acting in, or incidental to, their public employment capacity;
- (d) in a situation where the CUCF exercises a Set-off against all or part of the payment due the contractor; or,
- (e) for reasonable cause, determines not to release or reduce retainage upon completion or

Deleted: incidental to

substantial completion of a construction contract.

13. Statement Filing - The CUCF shall, within 30 days after the adoption of this statement, file a copy of such statement, and amendments thereto, with the State Comptroller, the State Director of the Budget, the Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and the Chairman of the Assembly Ways and Means Committee.

14. Contract Incorporation - The statement in effect at the time of creation of a contract is hereby deemed to be incorporated into and made a part of that contract.

15. Prompt Payment Report – The N.Y.C. Comptroller, as agent for the CUCF, shall through the N.Y.C. Procurement Policy Board, include CUCF in the prompt payment report generated for the City of New York as a whole. Such report is made available as a matter of public record.

16. Public Access - The City of New York shall make such report available as a matter of public record.

17. Effective Date - This Statement of Prompt Payment Policy shall take effect on July 1, 2014 and shall apply to contracts or purchase orders initially entered into on and after such date.